Board of Crawford County Commissioners

Commissioners” Journal

2025, SEVENTY-SECOND MEETING

CRAWFORD COUNTY COURTHOUSE, COMMISSIONERS’ BOARD ROOM
Girard, KS. Friday, October 10, 2025 at 10:00 AM

The Crawford County Board of Commissioners met pursuant to Kansas Statutes.
Annotated Chapter 19, Article 2, Section 18 in due and regular session with open doors.
Commissioner Tom Moody served as the presiding officer.

Commissioners Bruce Blair and Carl Wood were in attendance.

County Clerk Lisa Lusker and County Counselor Jim Emerson were seated with the
Board.

Chairman Moody led the Pledge of Allegiance.

UNDER THE HEADING BUSINESS FROM A PREVIOUS MEETING
CONSENT AGENDA
On motion (25-410) of Commissioner Wood and the second of Commissioner Blair that
the consent agenda be approved including:
1. Approval of the October 03, 2025 minutes of the Board of County
Commissioners, and
2. Authorizing the Chairman to sign the previous week’s vouchers.
Yeas: Commissioners Wood, Blair, and Moody
Nays:
Present but not voting:
Absent or not voting:
The motion prevailed and the consent agenda was approved.

SIGNING OF MOTIONS
The County Clerk presented the following motions for Commissioners’ signatures:

Motion 25 402 That the consent agenda be approved including: Approval of the

the previous week’s vouchers

September 30, 2025 minutes, and Authorizing the Chairman to sign

Motion 25 403 To grant a letter of support for Building Health Inc. authorizing the

Chairman to sign

Motion 25 404 To recess this open meeting and go into a closed executive session for

10 minutes to discuss Sheriff’s Department pursuant to the non-elected
personnel exception, K.S.A. 75-4319(b)(1), to protect the privacy of
the individual employees. The County Commissioners, County
Counselor Jim Emerson, and Sheriff’s Department Human

Page 1 of 10




Board of Crawford County Commissioners

Resources/Finance Officer Adam Harrison attended the executive
session. The open meeting will resume at 10:42 AM. The Motion
passed 3-0

Motion 25

405

To recess this open meeting and go into a closed executive session for
15 minutes pursuant to the non-elected personnel exception, K.S.A.
75-4319(b)(1), to protect the privacy of the individual employees. The
County Commissioners, County Counselor Jim Emerson, and
Communications Director Tim Mikrut attended the executive session.
The open meeting will resume at 10:58 AM. The Motion passed 3-0

Motion 25

406

To approve the signature forms allowing Communications Director
Tim Mikrut to be the authorized agent for the FEMA Storm Siren
grant and authorizing the Chairman to sign

Motion 25

407

To recess this open meeting and go into a closed executive session for
20 minutes to discuss Health Department pursuant to the non-elected
personnel exception, K.S.A. 75-4319(b)(1), to protect the privacy of
the individual employees. The County Commissioners, County
Counselor Jim Emerson, Health Department Director Debra Anthony,
and Finance Director Heidi Moody attended the executive session. The
open meeting will resume at 11:16 AM. The Motion passed 3-0

Motion 25

408

To recess this open meeting and go into a closed executive session for
30 minutes to discuss EMS pursuant to the non-elected personnel
exception, K.S.A. 75-4319(b)(1), to protect the privacy of the
individual employees. The County Commissioners, County Counselor
Jim Emerson, EMS Director Randy Sandberg, and EMS Billing
Supervisor Jill Warford attended the executive session. The open
meeting will resume at 11:50 AM. The Motion passed 3-0

Motion 25

409

To recess this open meeting and to go into a closed executive session
for 15 minutes to discuss legal advice regarding HHW and Recycling
which would be deemed privileged in the attorney-client relationship
pursuant to the consultation with attorney exception, K.S.A. 75-
4319(b)(2), with the County Commissioners and County Counselor
Jim Emerson present. The open meeting will resume at 12:19 A.M.
The motion passed 3-0

UNDER THE HEADING NEW BUSINESS
PROCLAMATION AND ORDERS OF THE BOARD
PUBLIC HEARINGS AND OPENING OF ANNOUNCED BIDS
MESSAGES FROM CRAWFORD CO LOCAL BOARD OF HEALTH
MESSAGES FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES
MESSAGES FROM ELECTED OFFICIALS
MESSAGES FROM THE PUBLIC

Item One: Mr. Blake Benson with the Pittsburg Area Chamber of Commerce addressed
the Commissioners. He introduced the Commissioners to the 2025 class of Leadership

Crawford County. Mr. Benson explained the Leadership Crawford County program and
some things that they do. The Commissioners thanked Mr. Benson for what he does for

the program.

Page 2 of 10




Board of Crawford County Commissioners
MESSAGES FROM APPOINTED OFFICIALS

Item One: Emergency Manager Quinton Parsons addressed the Commissioners. He
updated the Commissioners that back in June he applied for the Pipeline Emergency
Response Grant and he has been informed as of last week they have received $36,000 for
this grant. Mr. Parsons explained what this grant does. Commissioner Wood asked for
Mr. Parsons to give a quick description of what his job duties include for the Leadership
Crawford County group and Mr. Parsons explained.

Item Two: County Grant Writer Gus Brunetti addressed the Commissioners. He stated
he is here to give an update on grants. Mr. Brunetti stated between the current national
government shut down and the increased replacement of IT equipment the grant side is
lighter than normal but that they do still have a couple of projects going on. He stated he
has been working with Ms. Angie Hadley with RJA once a month now for potential
grants for that program. He also discussed a grant he applied for on behalf of Mulberry
regarding waterlines and meters last year. They did not receive the grant but were told to
apply again this year so he has submitted that application. Mr. Brunetti explained a
representative from IXA Studios in Kansas reached out to him about the ROZ Marketing
Funds regarding developing a marketing plan for Crawford County and that he and Mr.
Emerson will be meeting with this representative sometime next week. Mr. Brunetti
explained the ROZ Marketing Fund. Mr. Emerson discussed the Rural Opportunity Zone
(ROZ) allowing for student loan repayment in counties that qualify as well as a state
income tax abatement. Mr. Emerson explained they have found out this year that
Crawford County has been one of the counties that have been removed from the list of
qualifying counties for the student loan portion due to being too large of a county.
Commissioner Blair asked where this information can be found and Mr. Emerson
explained. Mr. Brunetti stated he believes this information is located on the county
website and if it is not, he will get it put on there. Mr. Brunetti discussed the Opolis
playground. Commissioner Wood asked about a specific grant and Mr. Brunetti
explained. Mr. Brunetti discussed being contacted by the SEK Animal Advocates last
year regarding trap and neuter costs and supplies and Mr. Brunetti stated he has told them
he will attempt to find some grants for this program. Mr. Brunetti asked if the
Commissioners would be willing to come up with some match funding if they did find a
grant for this program and Commissioner Blair stated they can always come in and pitch
ideas for a match fund. Mr. Brunetti discussed Arma Recreational Program approached
him regarding getting batting cages for their softball fields and that he has been working
on something for their city pool and he will be looking into this as well. Mr. Brunetti
explained Athletic Director Bill Sullivan from Frontenac High School contacted him
about track renovations and he has a list ready to send to him. Mr. Brunetti stated he has
been looking into HHW grants and that he has a meeting set up with Johnson County to
see how they run their HHW program. Mr. Emerson stated it is worth while to continue
looking into HHW grants. Mr. Brunetti discussed that most of his focus lately has been
on getting all computers upgraded from Windows 10 and getting rid of old servers,
drives, and clearing e-waste from the basement. Commissioner Wood asked if any of the
grants the county has will be revoked due to the government shut down after October 16™
and Mr. Brunetti explained.

NEW BUSINESS

Page 3 of 10



Board of Crawford County Commissioners

Item One: County Clerk Lisa Lusker stated she received a letter from Sheridan
Township Trustee Norma Washington. She explained Ms. Washington had to move out
of the township to Girard so she has resigned as of October 1% and is submitting her letter
of resignation. Ms. Lusker stated she received a letter of recommendation from Sheridan
Township Treasurer Bruce Washington to recommend Ms. Delores Washington to serve
as the Sheridan Township Trustee.

On motion (25-411) of Commissioner Blair and the second of Commissioner Moody to
accept the letter of resignation from Sheridan Township Trustee Norma Washington and
accept the recommendation of appointing Delores Washington as Sheridan Township
Trustee.

Yeas: Commissioners Blair, Moody, and Wood

Nays:

Present but not voting:

Absent or not voting:

The motion prevailed.

Item Two: Ms. Lusker presented the September 2025 Clerk’s Report. She explained the
report to the Commissioners. Commissioner Wood stated more was spent last month and
that he is going to ask why certain expenses were taken from a different account. After
clarifying what account Commissioner Wood was questioning, Commissioner Blair
stated he thinks this expense was for 200" street. Mr. Emerson explained the money they
receive from the Federal Fund Exchange goes into the Special Bridge fund, and that this
was the correct fund to use to pay for this expense.

On motion (25-412) of Commissioner Blair and the second of Commissioner Moody to
approve the September 2025 Clerk’s Report as presented.

On a Roll Call vote.

Yeas: Commissioners Blair, Moody, and Wood

Nays:

Present but not voting:

Absent or not voting:

The motion prevailed.

MESSAGES FROM APPOINTED OFFICIALS CONTINUED

Item Three: Zoning Administrator May Smith and County Appraiser Zach Edwards
addressed the Commissioners. Commissioner Wood stated a gentleman called him from a
county with gas wells and that he would like to know if there are any gas wells in
Crawford County running or abandoned. Commissioner Wood asked if there are any
working gas wells in the county and Mr. Edwards stated there are none listed on the tax
rolls that produce gas for resale and if there are any operational gas wells, they are not
aware of it. Commissioner Wood stated the only one he knows about is being used to
heat a house. Commissioner Wood gave some information regarding the phone call he
received. Mr. Edwards explained there were approximately 300 licenses for approval to
drill that he found on the Kansas Geological Survey site and that most of the gas wells in
the county have not been functional for 20 to 30 years and the last being drilled back in

Page 4 of 10



Board of Crawford County Commissioners

the 1990’s. Commissioner Wood asked what the procedure looks like if people fire up the
leases on the gas wells and is it something that needs to be put in to the Comprehensive
Plan and Ms. Smith explained. Commissioner Blair discussed the 1990’s wells being
capped about a year and a half ago and explained the process. Commissioner Blair stated
it sounds like discussing crypto mining and Commissioner Wood explained what is being
done in Bourbon County. Ms. Lusker asked the connection between the data center and
gas wells and Commissioner Wood explained they have to have large amounts of power
to operate. Commissioner Blair explained that if the grid cannot support the data center
they may turn to resources such as natural gas to power a generator. Commissioner Wood
asked who came in and did the capping of the gas wells and Commissioner Blair stated
he can figure out who did this. Commissioner Wood asked about how they previously
collected revenue from the properties with gas wells and Mr. Edwards explained.
Commissioner Wood asked what they need to do if this starts to develop in Crawford
County and Ms. Smith explained they have a work session next week with Planning and
Zoning with Mr. Joshua Albin present and she has added it to the list of items to be
discussed. Commissioner Wood asked if there were 300 gas wells in the county and Mr.
Edwards explained that there were around 300 applications for licenses when it came to
gas wells not necessarily that it meant there were that many gas wells in the county.
Commissioner Wood stated he appreciates Ms. Smith and Mr. Edwards looking into this.
Ms. Smith mentioned the tractor show is taking place at the museum grounds in Pittsburg
this weekend.

NEW BUSINESS CONTINUED

Item Three: Commissioner Wood asked Ms. Smith about spot zoning. Commissioner
Wood explained he discussed with a gentleman yesterday about 2.5 hours regarding spot
zoning. Commissioner Moody asked if he was discussing spot zoning or annexation and
Commissioner Wood clarified that it would be annexation. Commissioner Wood asked
what the county does for annexations such as procedure and then asked if this certain
land being annexed would then have to pay for city, county, and school on taxes instead
of just county and school and Mr. Emerson confirmed. Commissioner Wood asked what
needs to be done if the location is in a zoned area and Ms. Smith explained she does not
know for sure and Mr. Emerson explained. Commissioner Wood asked who chooses
what type of annexation it will be and Mr. Emerson answered it is the cities choice.
Commissioner Moody asked what happens if they choose option 2 and that he keeps
hearing about three questions and asked Mr. Emerson to elaborate and Mr. Emerson
explained. Commissioner Wood asked about landowners around the area wanting to be
annexed doing a petition to stop the annexation and Mr. Emerson explained.
Commissioner Wood asked if the city annexes the land can they turn around and de
annex and Mr. Emerson explained. Commissioner Moody asked if the city was to annex
what zoning would be involved and Mr. Emerson explained it would revert to the city’s
zoning regulations.

Item Four: Mr. Emerson stated he would like to discuss the bids opened last meeting.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

Page 5 of 10



Board of Crawford County Commissioners

Item One: Commissioner Wood requested an executive session for 10 minutes to discuss
items that would be deemed privileged in the Attorney-Client Relationship.

On motion (25-413) of Commissioner Moody and second of Commissioner Blair to
recess this open meeting and to go into a closed executive session for 10 minutes to
discuss legal advice regarding bids which would be deemed privileged in the attorney-
client relationship pursuant to the consultation with attorney exception, K.S.A. 75-
4319(b)(2), with the County Commissioners and County Counselor Jim Emerson present.
The open meeting will resume at 11:09 A.M. The motion passed 3-0.

Yeas: Commissioners Wood, Blair, and Moody

Nays:

Present but not voting:

Absent or not voting:

The motion prevailed.

The Commissioners went into Executive Session at 10:54 AM and reconvened the
Open Session at 10:59 AM with no action taken except to go back into open session.

NEW BUSINESS CONTINUED

Item Five: Mr. Emerson addressed the bids opened last meeting. He provided the
Commissioners with the three bids for the storage building and read them aloud. Mr.
Emerson stated JT Construction is the low bid. Commissioner Moody asked if the
instructions under section 2A were followed and it was stated that they were not.
Commissioner Moody asked if the three references were provided and it was stated they
did not. Commissioner Moody asked if three copies were printed and provided and Mr.
Aaron Crozier stated he did not see instructions to turn in three copies. Commissioner
Moody asked if the proposal had stated anything about 2 doors and an interior bathroom
door and Mr. Robert Gorentz answered it did not and Mr. Crozier stated that they had
agreed to everything in the specs but that the RFP mentioned they needed to state
everything included in the specs. Commissioner Moody asked if the proposal stated the
insulation in the walls and ceiling and Mr. Gorentz stated it was not specific about the
insulation. Commissioner Moody asked if the proposal stated the gauge of the metal and
Mr. Crozier stated it did not but the spec did. Commissioner Moody stated he knows they
need to take the lowest bids to save the county as much money as possible but that they
are having a hard time moving with this when so many things were asked but not
answered. Commissioner Moody stated since Mr. Gorentz and Mr. Crozier handle this he
will go with what they recommend for this particular incidence but that he believes when
they ask for something it should be followed and that he does not believe it was done this
time. Commissioner Moody asked the other two Commissioners if they believe when
they send something out should it be followed and Commissioner Wood stated if Mr.
Gorentz and Mr. Crozier are satisfied with it. Commissioner Moody asked about the
specification of the gauge in the metal and that he is aware it was specified in the bid but
asked if it was specified in the quote and Mr. Gorentz answered that it was not. Mr.
Crozier stated from what he read in the RFP that it was not asked that they specify it in
the quote but that the biggest thing that they missed was using the county’s bid proposal
form, use the corporate stamp, and the signature. Commissioner Moody stated the biggest
concern he has is the gauge of the metal. Mr. Emerson explained the law when it comes

Page 6 of 10



Board of Crawford County Commissioners

to accepting the bids. Commissioner Moody asked if JT Construction is the
recommendation because it is the low bid and Mr. Gorentz and Mr. Crozier confirmed.
Commissioner Wood asked some details regarding the building.

On motion (25-414) of Commissioner Wood and the second of Commissioner Blair to
approve the recommendation of JT Construction as the low bid for the storage building as
presented.

Yeas: Commissioners Wood and Blair

Nays: Commissioner Moody

Present but not voting:

Absent or not voting:

The motion prevailed.

Item Six: Mr. Emerson presented the Commissioners with the bids for the Pittsburg
Judicial Center boilers. He read the bids aloud. Commissioner Moody asked about the
CDL bid package and Mr. Crozier explained. Commissioner Moody asked if there would
be an additional expense with James River Mechanicals bid to sub out work and Mr.
Crozier stated there would not be. Commissioner Blair asked if there would be additional
expense with the other two bids and Mr. Crozier answered the only additional expense
would be the option of the chemical sock filters. Mr. Crozier explained there are some
that did not meet the bid requirements and that only one came close to meeting all the
requirements which was Design Mechanical who is also the highest bid. Mr. Crozier
explained the difference between the bids for the boilers and the storage building.
Commissioner Blair asked what the expected price of this project was and Mr. Crozier
answered. Commissioner Blair stated he believes it is a high bid for the project. Mr.
Crozier answered there is short term solutions and explained the short term fix as well as
its cost. Commissioner Blair stated he understands the project needs to be done and Mr.
Crozier did confirm it is higher than what he thought. Commissioner Wood asked why
spend money on a short term fix. Commissioner Wood stated he wonders what Design
Mechanicals bid price would be if they bid the same as the other two bidders and Mr.
Crozier stated he does not know what the other two bidders are doing specifically.
Commissioner Wood mentioned rebidding. Commissioner Blair asked if they would feel
comfortable asking the bidders the questions they need to ask and then come back with
their recommendation. Mr. Crozier stated specifics regarding the boilers that James River
Mechanical and CDL are bidding. Commissioner Moody asked if it was stated
specifically what type of boilers to bid and Mr. Crozier stated it was not. Commissioner
Blair asked if there will be energy savings with the boiler replacements and Mr. Gorentz
confirmed. Commissioner Wood stated he would like to accept Design Mechanicals bid
and that he hates to spend the extra money but also hates to spend money on a temporary
fix. Commissioner Wood made a motion to accept the bid of Design Mechnical as
presented and motion failed due to lack of second. Commissioner Wood asked Mr.
Gorentz about putting steel posts on the boundary lines at the Homer Cole Community
Center. Commissioner Blair asked if Sign Foreman Dale Shireman could do this and
Commissioner Wood stated he will discuss with Mr. Shireman. Commissioner Moody
thanked Mr. Gorentz and Mr. Crozier for doing what they do for these projects.

Item Seven: Mr. Emerson presented the Commissioners with a paper for proposed EMS
rate increases. He explained the reasoning for these proposed base rates. Mr. Emerson

Page 7 of 10



Board of Crawford County Commissioners

explained the specifics of the service rates being increased. Commissioner Blair stated he
believes the increased rates are required due to the financial issues.

On motion (25-415) of Commissioner Moody and the second of Commissioner Blair to
approve the EMS rate increases effective as of October 13, 2025.

Yeas: Commissioners Moody, Blair, and Wood

Nays:

Present but not voting:

Absent or not voting:

The motion prevailed.

Item Eight: Commissioner Wood asked Mr. Emerson how many grants does the county
have related to the federal government and what will they do with the programs ran by
these funds. Mr. Emerson stated the individual departments would be more able to
answer the question about the number of grants and explained what he believes could
happen if the government were to remain shut down for longer. Commissioner Wood
asked if they will try to absorb the people involved in these programs because he believes
if the federal government shuts off the program the county will have to cut it due to costs.
Commissioner Blair asked if Mr. Emerson could look into this. Mr. Emerson explained
the main departments would be Health Department, RJA, and corrections. Mr. Emerson
explained some specifics about grants. Commissioner Moody asked if the Sheriff’s
Department is on any grants and Mr. Emerson explained. Commissioner Wood asked if
Ms. Lusker could elaborate any more on the grants and Ms. Lusker answered.

OLD BUSINESS

Item One: Ms. Lusker stated Director of Fiscal Services Randi Ryan has requested a
work session included Bukaty to discuss insurance options on October 17th at 9:00 AM
and the Commissioners agreed.

Item Two: Ms. Lusker discussed SEKCAP and that Mr. Casey Brown would like to
come talk with the Commissioners about the shut down of the public transportation. She
mentioned he would like to set up a work session and Commissioner Moody stated he
believes it should also be done in a public meeting. Ms. Lusker suggested a work session
on October 14, 2025 at 9:30 and then to continue it into the meeting.

Item Three: Ms. Lusker presented a letter of intention from Varney and Associates to
have signed stating they will use them for next years audit. Commissioner Blair
mentioned they did a wonderful job and all agreed.

On motion (25-416) of Commissioner Moody and the second of Commissioner Blair to
approve the letter of intention with Varney and Associates.

Yeas: Commissioners Moody, Blair, and Wood

Nays:

Present but not voting:

Absent or not voting:

The motion prevailed.

Page 8 of 10



Board of Crawford County Commissioners

Item Four: Commissioner Blair mentioned he got a call about 20th street bridge and that
they will be looking at this bridge again today. He stated they have put it in with KDOT
for several years and it has yet to be selected. Commissioner Wood stated if it’s the first
bridge of the road they have a plan with City of Pittsburg and that he would like to
replace this bridge. Mr. Emerson stated he will look in to this. Commissioner Wood
asked how they are going to address this and Commissioner Blair stated he does not
know because he has not seen it yet.

Item Five: Commissioner Wood discussed a nuclear power plant coming to Southeast
Kansas when he attended the KDOT Local Consult Meeting and that he has tried to see
where it will be located.

UNDER THE HEADING FUTURE BUSINESS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS
FUTURE BUSINESS:

Item One: October 14, 2025- 8:30 AM Work Session to sign midmonth bills and
payroll vouchers.

Item Two: October 14, 2025- 9:30 AM Work Session with Mr. Casey Brown with
SEKCAP to discuss public transportation.

Item Three: October 14, 2025- Mr. Jeff Fischer and Mr. Steve Rockers with KDOT
discussing US 69 Highway Study.

Item Four: October 17, 2025- 9:00 AM Work Session with Bukaty to discuss insurance
options.

ANNOUNCEMENTS:

Item One: October 13, 2025- The Courthouse will be closed in observance of the
Columbus Day Holiday.

Item Two: October 11, 2025- All three Commissioners may be in attendance at the
Pittsburg State University Homecoming Parade.

UNDER THE HEADING MOTION TO ADJOURN
MOTION TO ADJOURN
Item One: Adjournment

On the motion of Commissioner Wood and the second of Commissioner Blair to adjourn
the October 10, 2025 meeting of the Board of Crawford County Commissioners at 11:46
AM and to reconvene at the next regularly scheduled time with open doors.

Yeas: Commissioners Wood, Blair, and Moody

Nays:

Present but not voting:

Absent or not voting:

The motion prevailed.

Page 9 of 10



Board of Crawford County Commissioners

In Testimony whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and caused to be affixed my
official seal and submitted these minutes for the approval of the Board of Crawford
County Commissioners.

Lisa Lusker
County Clerk

<>

This submission completed at the Crawford County Courthouse in Girard.
Taken RJA 10/10/25 4:35 PM

Page 10 of 10



